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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Star Cement North East Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Star Cement North East Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income)
and the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred
to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015, as amended (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements ‘section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors Report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ahility to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2{(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 1, 2025 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to our remarks in
paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report. OQur report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to the financial statements;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of the section
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given
to us, the company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 to its directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act;
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(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

vi.

The Company has no pending litigations in its financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note No. 46(ii), no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note No. 46(iii), no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not declared any dividend in the previous year which has been paid in the current year. Further,
no dividend has been declared in the current year.

Based on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with the requirements of Implementation
Guide on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, we report
that the Company has used various accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except audit trail feature which was not enabled at database level. Further, where audit
trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit. Additionally, except for the database level changes
as mentioned above, the Audit Trail has been preserved by the Company as per the Statutory requirement for record
retention.
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ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date in respect to Statutory Audit of Star Cement North East Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025)

We report that:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of
property, plant & equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b. The Company has regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which property, plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is at reasonable intervals having
regard to the size of the company and nature its property, plant and equipment. Since major addition to the property, plant &
equipment has been made in the previous year, in accordance with this programme, physical verification programme will start
from next year.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is a lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the company except as detailed below: Refer
Note 2.1(a) to the financial statements

Whether held

Gross Reason for not
. . by promoter, ) )
Description of Carrying . . Property held being held in the
Held in the name of director, or . .
| the property Value (Rs. . i since which date name of the
their relative
In lakhs) company

or employee

The pr f
Vg e process o

Freeholdland | 930.15 | Star Cement Ltd. FY 2023-24 change of nameis
(Promoter) )
in progress.
[ Star Smart Building
Freehold land pppgny | FOEHEsLImIG {\Ilz?ellow Purchased during T:e pt:;is:a?: i
=3 | (Formerly Star Cement (1) | & o oW FY 2024-25 - o
Ltd) | Subsidiary) | in progress.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (incl'uding Right of Use assets) and intangible assets
during the year.

e. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for helding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

a. The inventory, except goods in transit, has been physically verified by the Management during the year. As the
Company'’s inventory of raw materials which comprises mostly of bulk materials such as clinker, flyash and gypsum
requiring technical expertise for quantification, the company has hired independent agency for physical verification of
the stock of these materials. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the managementis reasonable and coverage
and procedure for such verification is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory
were not noticed on physical verification of such inventories.
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M.

VI.

VI

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are not in agreement with the books of account
of the Company as stated below (Refer note — 47 to the Financial Statements): -

Amount
disclosed | Amount disclosed
Name of Quarter . " :
Particulars per as per quarterly | Differences Reason for variance '
the Bank ended
books of | return/statements
account |
1 As  explained by the
management, the
differences are because,
the statements filed with
l the lenders are based on
, March'25 Net Asset | 1,905.69 6,573.94 4,668.25 ffi“anc'aij State_’""_e”tsl
| UDEC Bank prepare on  provisional |
- basis and also due to
Limited ; ;
audit/accounting
adjustment entries carried
out subsequently along
with certain debtors; inter
December'24 | Net Asset | 5,049.93 | 6,667.82 -1,617.89 | company (within Group)
| balances ere not
‘ September'24 | Net Asset 2,884.82 4,479.63 -1,594.81 f - W
[ considered by bank.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The
Company has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, made investments or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act.
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of Investment made by the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Hence reporting under
clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the
Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We,
however, have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate
or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account, in our opinion,
the company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate autharities undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it. In our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added
tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six manths from the date they

—

became payable. WG H \
NG\
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no disputed
dues as at March 31, 2025, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute

VIIl.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

a. According information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

c. Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, term loans were applied
for the purpase for which they were obtained.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e & f. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt
instruments during the year.

b. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible or
optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

XI.

a. Duringthe course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanation given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

b. Duringthe course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanation given to us, a report under Section
143(12) of the Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

€. Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

XII. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly,
clause3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XIIl. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

XIV.  The company is not required to have an internal audit system as per criteria given in the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
reporting under clauses 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) are not applicable to the company.
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XV.  According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non- cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XVI.

a. TheCompanyis notrequired to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management, there is no core
investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

XVII. The Company has notincurred cashlosses during theyear covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

XIX.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (refer note — 45 to the
financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

XX.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section
(5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not
applicable.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 302049E
n V4

(Gopal Jain)

(Partner)

Membership No. 059147
UDIN: 25059147BMLGYS4015

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 20, 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date in respect to Statutory Audit of Star Cement North East Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Star Cement North East Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31* March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at 31% March 2025, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.
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Date: May 20, 2025
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CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC021391
Regd Office :- 2nd Floor, Mayur Garden, G.S. Road, Kamrup, Guwahati- 781005

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

¥ in lakhs
IParticuIars Note no | AS atMarch 31, | As atMarch 31,
2025 2024
A. Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 241 39,596.47 40,729.96
(b) Capital work-in-progress 22 4,353.76 357.39
(c) Right-of-use assets 213! 746.17 40.22
(d) Intangible assets 24 1.60 2.43
(e) Financial assets
| (i) Other financial assets 3 559.96 529.79
| () Deferred tax assets (net) 4 120.88 -
(g) Non-current tax assets (net) 5 - 2.28
(h) Other non-current assets 6 1,210.73 625.85
Total non-current assets 46,589.57 42,287.92
Current assets
(@) Inventories 7 3,868.85 1,709.10
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivabies 8 7,797.70 4,434.03
(i) Cash and cash equivaients 9 832.58 83.52
(iii)y Other Bank balances 10 19.50 -
(iv) Other financial assets 1" 15,422.89 693.22
(c) Other current assets 12 2,169.71 5,225.57
Total current assets 30,111.23 12,145.44
Total assets 76,700.80 54,433.36
B. Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 1,005.00 1,005.00
(b) Other equity 14 26,786.98 9,560.41
Total equity i 27,791.98 10,565.41
Liabilities |
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 24,166.90 28,886.85
| (i) Lease liabilities 16 657.57 15.57
(b) Provisions ‘ 17 188.46 87.80
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 \ - 115.87
Total non-current liabilities 25,012.93 29,106.09
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 3,564.63 2,091.09
(i) Lease liabilities 20 | 111.12 24.27 |
(i) Trade payables 21
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,774.82 ‘ 680.15
T Bk et s owoe | aro
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 7.217.73 6,941.41
(b) Other current liabilities 23 2,889.75 300.54
(c) Provisions 24 4.75 5.29
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 25 347.05 -
Total current liabilities 23,895.89 14,761.86
Total liabilities 48,908.82 43,867.95
Total equity and liabilities 76,700.80 | 54,433.36
Material accounting policies 1

The accomganying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

ASTperotrTeporkoRevenTdate Star Cement North East Limited
For Singhi & Co. Manoj Kgarwal Tushar Bhajanka
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Firm Registration N0.302049E L~ DIN:09179632
_/\/‘/ -
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Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC021391

Regd Office :- 2nd Floor, Mayur Garden, G.S. Road, Kamrup, Guwahati- 781005

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

=

T in lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Noleino For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1) Income
(a) Revenue from operations 26 1,31,016.83 5,441.21
(b) Other income 27 457.78 -
Total income 1,31,474.61 5,441.21
Il) Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 28 62,437.50 3,176.21
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods 29 (432.84) (452.41)
(c) Employee benefit expense 30 3,604.18 91.26
(d) Finance costs ¥ 3,007.57 132.72
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 7,860.07 371.15
(f) Power and fuel expense 4,808.59 264.75
(g) Carriage outward expense
- on finished goods 19,133.91 879.95
(h) Other expenses 33 10,296.78 302.43
(i) Captive consumption of cement (36.42) -
Total expenses 1,10,679.34 4,766.06
1) Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-11) 20,795.27 675.15
IV) Exceptional items - -
V) Profitbefore tax (l1I-IV) 20,795.27 675.15
VI) Tax expenses 34
- Current tax 3,791.33 -
- Deferred tax (234.32) 115.87
- Tax for earlier years - (1.13)
Total tax expenses 3,557.01 114.74
VIl) Profit for the year (V-VI) 17,238.26 560.41
VIII Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
-Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (14.11) -
-Income tax related to above 2.42 -
Other comprehensive income for the year (11.69) -
1X) Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIIl) 17,226.57 560.41
X) Earnings per equity share (face value of ¥ 10 each) 34A
Basic (3) 171.52 5.58
Diluted (%) 171.52 5.58
Material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrati‘cm No.302049E Mano&garwal

Chief Financial Officer

‘Debabrata Thakurta
Company Secretary

(Gopal‘Jain)

Partner

Membership No. 059147
Place : Kolkata

Date : May 20, 2025

Forand on behalf of Board of Directors of
Star Cement North East Limited

Tushar Bhajanka
Managing Director
DIN:09179632

Nikita Bansal
Director
DIN:03109710




Star Cement North East Limited STAR

.
CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC021391
Regd Office :- 2nd Floor, Mayur Garden, G.S. Road, Kamrup, Guwahati- 781005
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity share capital F in lakhs
Particulars Amount
As at April 1, 2023 5.00
Issued during the year (Refer note 13b) 1,000.00
As at March 31, 2024 1,005.00
Issued during the year -
As at March 31, 2025 1,005.00

? SIUE SaRity Z in lakhs

Reserves and surplus
Particulars Share application money | Securities | Retained Total
pending allotment premium earnings

As at April 1,2023 2,000.00 - - 2,000.00
Profit for the year 560.41 560.41
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year g - 560.41 560.41
Issue of Equity shares during the year (2,000.00)] 9,000.00 - 7,000.00
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 9,000.00 560.41 9,560.41
Balance as at April 1,2024 - 9,000.00 560.41 9,560.41
Profit for the year | 2 3 17,238.26 17,238.26
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (11.69) (11.69)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 17,226.57 17,226.57
Balance as at March 31, 2025 ™ 9,000.00 17,786.98 26,786.98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Star Cement North East Limited

As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:302049E

Manoj&AganNal Tushar Bhajanka
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
’ DIN:09179632

(Gopal Jain) ‘Debabrata Thakurta

Partner Company Secretary Nikita Ban(z—zl
Membership No. 059147 Director
Place : Kolkata DIN:03109710

Date : May 20, 2025




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC021391

Regd Office :- 2nd Floor, Mayur Garden, G.S. Road, Kamrup, Guwahati- 781005
Statement of Cash Flow forthe yearended March 31, 2025

Z in lakhs
Phiticaiare For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 20,795.27 675.15
Adjustments for *
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 7,772.91 369.39
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 87.16 1.76
Unrealised foreign exchange gain /(loss) (Net) 56.87
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) (442.97) ‘
Interest income (1.04) %
Finance costs 3.007.57 132.72
Operating profit before working capital changes 31,275.77 1,179.02
Adjustments for *
(Increase) /decrease in trade receivables (3,363.67) (4,434.03)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories (2,159.75) (1,709.10)
(Increase ) / decrease in financial and other assets (11,703.98) (5,644.26)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 4,361.60 5,399.26
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions 756887 1,426 82
Cash generated from operations 25,978.84 (3,782.29)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (3,444.28) (0.96)
Net cash flow from operating activities 22,534.56 (3.783.25)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets ( including capital work in
progress, capital advances and capital liabilities) (16,435.37) (32,131.42)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 1,098.61 -
Redemption/(Investments) in fixed deposits and margin money deposits (having original
maturity for more than 3 months) (19.50) -
interest received 0.11 -
Net cash used in investing activities (15,356.15) (32,131.42)
C. Cash Flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Non-Current Borrowings 17,123.18 43,690.54
Repayment of Non-Current Borrowings (20,369.59) (14,803.69)
Proceeds from / (repayment of) short term borrowings (net) (56.87) 38.80
Interest and Finance charges Paid (2,995.70) (1,057.31)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest) (130.37) (2.72)
Proceeds from Issue of equity share capital - 8,000.00
Net cash from Financing Activities (6,429.35) 35,865.62
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) 749.06 (49.05)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 83.52 132.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 832.58 83.52
Notes :
1. The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7)
2. For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprises the followings: —
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 1.53 0.76
Balance with banks 831.05 82.76
Total 832.58 83.52

3. Income tax paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

4. As per Ind AS 7, the Company is required to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The Company did not have any material impact on
account of these changes in the statement of cash flow therefore reconciliation has not been given.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co. -
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:302049E ManoYAgarwal

- poS— Chief Financial Officer

(Gopal Jain) ~ Debabrata Thakurta
Partner \ 1 Company Secretary
Membership No. 059147 - \

Place : Kolkata NDa N

Date : May 20, 2025 \& 4
\\---A/{ 2

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Star Cement North East Limited

Tushar Bhajanka
Managing Director
DIN:09179632

Nikita Barfsal ~
Director
DIN:03109710




Star Cement North East Limited
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 {Contd.]
Note 1: Corporate Information and Material Accounting Policies

A. Corporate Information

Star Cement North Bast Limited (“the Company™) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on May 25,
2021 as per the provisions of the Companies Act. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Cement. The
registered office is located at Mayur Garden, 2nd Floor, G.S Road, Guwahati, Kamrup, Assam. The Company is selling its product
across northeastern and eastern states of India.

B. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division I of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT).

These standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors
on May 20, 2025,

C. New Accounting Pronouncements

{i) Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) has notified amendments to the existing standards Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracis
and Ind As 116 — Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable from April 1, 2024, The Company has
assessed that there is no significant impact on its financial statements.

D. Material Accounting Policies

(i) Basis of Preparation & Presentation

The accounting policies are consistently followed by the Company and changes in accounting policy are separately
disclosed.

{a) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

»  Net defined benefit asset/liability which is measured at Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligations
» TIanvestment in bonds is measured at amortised cost .
s  Investment in equity shares, other than investment in subsidiaries is measured at fair value
\ * Certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value / amortized cost.

(b} Current and non-current classification

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-Current

classification of its Assets and Liabilities,

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

() It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

(ii) Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or ‘ .

(iii) It is expected to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv)  The assel is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

GH/ g Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:
YN\ (i} Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycls; or
OV ()  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
# | (iii)  Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o




Star Cement North East Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period, Terms of liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent only.

(c) Rounding off amounts

(if  The financial statements ate presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

(i)  Figures have been rounded off in decimals to the nearest Rs in lakhs, unless otherwise stated. All amounts
disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off in decimals to the nearest lakhs as per
the requirement of Schedule 11, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division 1 of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 which require management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at
the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based upont management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period. Revisions in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
summarised below:

a) Classification of legal matters-and tax lifigation

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/ claims/ litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

b) Defined benefit obligations

The cost of defined benefit plan and present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the
long- term nature of the plan, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

¢} Useful life of property, plant and equipment
The determination of depreciation and amortization charge depends on the useful lives for which judgements and

estimations are required. The res1dua1 values, useful lives, and method of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are revicwed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

d)} Leases Ind AS 116
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]’

(iii)

The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with the impact of options to extend or terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised.

Where the implicit rate in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This incremental
borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the right of-use assetina similar
economic environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires estimation.

¢} [Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted
Cash Flow model / Adjusted Net Assets Value method. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

f) Discounts / rebate fo customers

The Company provides discount and rebates on sales to certain customers. Revenue from these sales is recognised based
on the price charged to the customer, net of the estimated pricing allowances, discounts, rebates, and other incentives. In
certain cases, the amount of these discount and rebates are not determined until claims with appropriate evidence is
presented by the customer to the Company, which may be some time after the date of sale. Accordingly, the Company
estimates the amount of such incentives basis the terms of contract, incentive schemes, historical experience adjusted
with the forward looking, business forecast and the current economic conditions. To estimate the amount of incentives,
the Company uses the most likely method. Such estimates are subject to the estimation uncertainty.

g) Physical verification of Inventory

Bulk inventory for the Company primarily comprises of coal, fly ash and clinker which are primarily used during the
production process at the manufacturing locations, Determination of physical quantities of bulk inventories is done
based on volumetric measurements and involves special considerations with respect to physical measurement, density
calculation, moisture, etc. which involve estimates / judgments,

h) Deferred Tax Assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets requires assessment of whether it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit
will be available against which deferred tax asset can be utilized. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates {‘the functional currency’). The Company’s standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company’s functional currency.

"Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transactions. Exchange differences arising on settlement /restatement of short-term foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities of the company are recognized as income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss
All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other income

or other expenses.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
iabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent

t the date of transaction.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, instaflation or construction {net of any recoverable
amount, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses if any, except freehold
hind which is carried at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price, installation and attributable cost of bringing the asset to
orking condition for its intended use.




Star Cement North East Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital Work in Progress
Capital work in progress carried at cost and includes any directly attributable cost incurred during construction period.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use as on the balance sheet date are disclosed as “Capital
work-in-progress”. Such items are classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition/ construction of property, plant and
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-current assets”

Expenditure during construction period

In case of new projects and substantial expansion of existing units, expenditure incurred including trial production
expenses net of revenue earned, and attributable interest and financing costs, prior to commencement of commercial
production/completion of project are capitalised.




Star Cement North East Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

)

(vii)

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) method in accordance
with the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 and considering the useful lives for computing
depreciation specified in Part ‘C’ thereof or as reassessed by the company based on technical evaluation except in case
of following:
»  Corporate Office building, which is owned by the company and depreciated using the straight- line method
over the period of lease of land on which it is constructed.

Depreciation is provided on components that have homogenous useful lives. In respect of an asset for which
impairment loss is recognized, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining
useful life. Depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
if appropriate. Estimated useful lives so determined are as follows:

Assets Useful Lives
Buildings and roads 3 - 30 years
Plant and machinery 5 - 15 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 - 10 years
Tools and tackles 3 -10 years
Vehicleg 8 - 15 years
Computer 3 years

Derecognition of property plant and egnipment

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no firture economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible Asset

An intangible asset is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are atiributable to the asset
will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Amortization of intangible assets

The amortization amount of an intangible asset is allocated over its estimated useful life. Expenditure on purchased
software and IT related expenditure is written off over a period of three years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based
on internal / external factors. An impairment loss will be recognized whersver the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value by using weighted average cost of capital.
A previously recognized impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.

Research and Development Expenditure

’
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. Development costs are capitalised only after the
technical and commercial feasibility of the asset for sale or use has been established. Thereafter, all directly attributable

Lease-
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd. ]

(viii)

As a Lessee:

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the undetlying assets,

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling and removing
or restoring the underlying asset and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. After the commencement date, the Right of use assets are measured applying the Cost model. They are
subsequently measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, adjustments for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased io reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease pavments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

As a Lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the
Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
income in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the receipt from lessee is
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation and compensate for the lessor’s expected inflation cost
mecerease.

Government Grants and Subsidies

Government grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable certainty that the same will be received.
Revenue grants in the nature of recoupment/ reimbursement of any particular item of expenses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as deduction from related item of expenditure. Grants related to assets which are recognized
in the Balance Sheet as deferred intcome, are recognized to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over
the useful life of the related assets by netting off with the related expense.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 {Contd.]

(ix)

(x)

Inventories
Raw materials, stores and spare parts, fuel and packing material:

Raw materials, stores and spares and fuel and packing material are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes purchase price, other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
and taxes for which credit is not available. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected
to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods:

Work-in-progress, finished goods and siock in trade are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a proportion of mamufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing costs. Cost of Stock-in-trade includes cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to the present location and condition, Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Investment
a) Investments and other financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

s those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss),
and

» those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The company classifies its debt instruments into the following categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collections of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT). Interest income from these financial assets is
inchzded in other income using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

Impairment of financial assets '

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry practices
and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
» The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or
s  Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset
is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the company has not retained control of the financial asset.

(xi) Trade receivables

Trade receivables that do not contain any significant financing component are recognized initially at transaction price.
Upon initial recognition of a receivable from a contract with a customer, any difference between the measurement of the
receivable in accordance with Ind AS 109 and the corresponding amount of revenue recognised shall be presented as an
expense, Subsequently, the trade receivables are measured at cost less expected credit losses. The Company calculates
the expected credit logses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.
The Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments for recognition of
impairment loss allowance. The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,

{xii)  Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and demand deposits with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments/deposits that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value with an original maturity of three months or less.

(xiii) Financial liabilities
Imitial recognition and measurement
The Company recognises all the financial liabilities on initial recognition at fair value minus, in the case of a financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue

of the financial liability.

The Company’s financial ligbilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis,

Subsequent measurement

All the financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for those measured at fair
value through profit or loss. \

De-recognition of financial liabilities

" The Company de-recognises {inancial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.

{xiv) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 [Contd.]

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months afier the reporting period, Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term
loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on
demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the
breach.

(xv) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset is capitalized
as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that
necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for ifs intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising
from relevant foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

(xvi) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(xvii) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
seitle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or
the counterparty.

(xviii) Revenue Recognition
(A) Sale of Goods

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefiis will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as
described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specific of each arrangement.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is transferred to the customer and
when there are nio longer any unfulfilled obligations. The Performance Obligations in sales contracts are fulfilled at the
time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on terms with customers.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a petformance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of variable
consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net
of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract.
This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration)
is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when
uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between transfer of promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

Contract balances
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended Match 31, 2025 [Contd. ]
Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

A trade receivable is recognized when the products are delivered to a customer and consideration becomes unconditional.
Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is conditional other than the
passage of time.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities is a Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer which the entity has already
received consideration. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the company performs under the contract.

(B) Other Income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive dividend is established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

(xix)  Employee Benefits
(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefiis that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of

employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are seitled.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan

Employees Benefits— in the form of provident fund, ESIC and other labour welfare fund are considered as defined
contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year when the contributions
to the respective funds are due.

(iii) Defined Benefit Plan

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefits obligations and are provided for on the basis
of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet date

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and transferred to retained eamings,

Other Long-term benefits

Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as
at the Balance Sheet date. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, in the statement of Profit or Loss.

xx) Tax Expenses

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Provision for the current tax is made on the basis of taxable income
for the current accounting year in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

zgr recogaition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction

$ %O
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(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred tax is determined using tax.rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Defetred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which thé temporary
difference can be utilised.

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the defetred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the taxes are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which originate during the tax holiday period and is likely to reverse
during the tax holiday period, is not recognized to the extent income is subject to deduction during the tax holiday period
as per the requirements of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before other comprehensive income for the
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before other comprehensive income for
the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and Contingencies

A Provision is recognized for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Liabilities which are material and whose
future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent and disclosed by way of notes
to the accounts. Contingent assets are also disclosed by way of notes to the accounts,

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a compounent of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s Chief Operating
Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the
management approach as defined in Tnd AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

¥ in lakhs
Note 2.2- Capital work-in-progress Azit %Z?h Az,?’t 2‘:;?”1
Balance af the beginning of the year 357.39 1,662.78
Add : expenditure incurred during the year 6,907.29 | 35,649.01
Less : capitalised during the year 2,891.41 38,954.40
Less : Adjustments/Transfers 19.51 -
Balance at the end of the year 4,353.76 357.39
Ageing wise amount break up of capital work-in-progress

¥ in lakhs

Amount in Capital Work-In-Progress for a period of
e | vea | 2-2vows | "omen?] o

As at March 31, 2025
Projects In progress 4,351 .;‘26 2.50 - 4,353.76
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 347.26 10.13 - - 357.39
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Note 2.2 (a)-There is no project whose cost has axceeded its budget or has overrun its completion time at each reporting

date.

Note 2.2 (b): Puring the year, the Company has incurred directly attributable expenditure related to acquisition/
construction of property, plant and equipment / capital work-in-progress and therefore accounted for the same as pre-

operative expenses under capital work-in-progress.

Particulars As at March | As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year included in capitat work in progress 85.63 596.04
Add: expenditure incurred during the year
Finance costs 58.00 942,53
Employee benefit expenses 473.23 545.51
Consumption of stores and spares 407.16 171.31
Power and fuel 182.73 435.82
Miscellaneous expensas {refer note below) 1,287.07 841.86
2,493.82 3,533.07
Less: capitalized during the year 864.75 3,447.44
Balance at the end of year included in capital work in progress 1,629.07 85.63

Note:
professional consultancy etc.

Above mentioned miscellaneous expenses includes core drilling & exploration, heavy vehicle expenses,

Note 2.3- Right-of-use assets Z in lakhs
. Lease hold | Lease hold
Particulars Building Land Total
Gross carrying value
As at April 1,2023 - - -
Additions during the year 41.98 - 41.98
Disposal during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2024 41.98 - 41.98
Additions during the year 163.28 629.83 793.11
Disposat during the vear - - -
As at March 31, 2025 205.28 629.83 835.09
Accumulated deprecation
As at April 1,2023 - - -
Charge for the year 1.76 - 1.76
Disposal during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2024 1.76 - 1.76
Charge for the year 66.16 21.00 87.16
Dispesal during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 67.92 21.00 88.92
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 40.22 - 40.22
As at March 31, 2025 137.34 608.83 746.17
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¥ in lakhs
Note 2.4- Intangible assets csc::;:‘?vl;ir
Gross carrying value
As at April 1,2023 -
Additions during the year 2.50
Disposal during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 2.50
Additions during the year -
Disposal during the year -
As at March 31, 2025 2,50
Accumulated deprecation
As at April 1,2023 -
Charge for the year 0.07
Disposal during the year }
As at March 31, 2024 0.07
Charge for the year 0.83
Disposal during the year -
As at March 31, 2025 _ 0.90
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 243
As at March 31, 2025 1.60
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Nolss to the Financlal Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2025

¥ In lakhs
B As atMarch | As atMarch
Note 3- Other financial asgets (non-current) 3, 2025 31, 2024
Unsecured, consldered goed unless otherwlse statod
Securlty deposits 560,96 528,79
559,86 529,79
¥ In lakhs
As at March | As at March
Note- 4- Defarred tax assets (net) 31, 2025 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Assets
On provislon for employee benefits 33.15 -
On temporary differences related to property, plant and equipment & intangible assets 81.82 -
Others 591 -
120.88 -
Deferred Tax Llabllitles ' - -
Deferred Tax Agsets (Net) 120.88 -
Note 4.1 : - Movement In Deferred Tax Assets / {(Deferred Tax Llabllitles) ¥ n lakhs
proprypan | Proyson | O urabucea
Particulars and equipment & P Others Total
Intanglble Assets employee | under Income
v benefits Tax Act, 1961
As at Aprtl 1, 2023 - - u -
{Charged)/credited:
« 1o statement of profif and loss {402.20) 16.87 27043 {0.06) (115.86)
- 1o other comprshansive incoms - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 (Refer Note No-18) (402.20} 15.97 270.43 (0.06) {115.86)
{Chargsdycradited:
- to statement of proflt and loss 484,02 14.76 -270.43 5.97 254,32
- to other comprehensive income o 242 - 242
As at March 31, 2025 81.82 33.15 “ 591 120.88

Mots 4.2 : The carrylng amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Based on the management's estimats regarding the future projection, company
expacts o have sufficient future taxable profits against which above Deferred Tax Asset shall be realized.

#1nlakhs
As atMarch | As atMarch
Note 5- Non-current tax assets (net) 31, 2025 31, 2024
TDS recelvables - 228
- 228
Z in lakhs
As at March | As at March
Mota 6- Other non-current assets 31,2025 31, 2024
Capiltal advances
Secured and consldered goad 965.88 84.80
" Unsecured, considered good 254,85 541.05
1,210.73 625.85
¥ In lakhs
Note 7- Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwise stated ) Asa:t;':;r;h A%‘?tyu;?h
Raw materials {including In transit as at March 31, 2025 -2250.82 lakhs and March 31, 2024 - 243.62 Lakhs) 1,500.96 504.49
Finished goods {insluding In transit as at March 31, 2025 -2216,07 lakhs and March 31, 2024 -2 156.88 Lakh) 885.25 452 41
Fuel 105.88 4,63
Packing materials {including in transit as at March 31, 2025 -¥83.52 lakhs and March 31, 2024 -NII) 341.53 12132
Stores and spares 985.23 826.25
3,868.85 1,709.10

Nots 7.1: The Company follows suitable provisioning norms for writing down the valus of Inventorles lowards slow moving, non-moving and obsolete inventory. Provision for

obsolesce of stores and spares Is Nil (March 31, 2024: NiI).

% In lakhs
As at March | As at March
MNote 8- Trade receivables 31,2025 31, 2024
Trade receivables consldered good- secured 976,69 2.09
Trads recsivables gonsidered gond- unsecured 6,621.01 4,431,984
7,797.70 4,434.03
. Ageing of outstanding trade receivables as on March 31,2025 from due date of payment ¥ in lakhs
Less than B More than 3
Partlculars Not Dug nonkhs 6 months - 1 year | 1 - 2 years 2 -3 years years Total
Undfsputed - consldered good 7.168.32 825.01 3.37 - - - 7,197.70
Undisputed - significant Ingrease In eredit risk - - - . . - .
Disputed - conslderad good . - - . - . .
Disputed - significant increase in credit risk - - - - - . -
7,169.32 625,01 3.37 - - - 7,797.70
Ageing of auistanding trade receivables as on March 31, 2024 from due date of payment ¥ in lakhs
Less than & More than 3
Particulars Not Due monthe | © months -1year |1 -2years | 2 -3years years Total
Undisputed -~ considerad good 4,434.03 - - - - - 4,434.03
Undisputed - significant Increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Nisputed - consldered good - - - . “ - .
Disputed - significant increase in credit risk “ B . - - - -
Total 4,434.03 - - - - - 4,434.063

Note 8.1 : There Is no unbllied recelvablas at sach reparting date .

Note 8.2 : No frade receivabtes are dus from directors or other offigers of the Company, either severally or jointly with any othar person. Further no trade recelvables are due
from: firms or private companles, respectively in which any director is & partner, a director or a member.

MNote 8.3 : Rafer Note 38.A(l) for details of loss allowance and credit period.
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T in lakhs
As at March 31, | As at March
Nots 9- Cash and gash squivalents 2025 31, 2024
Cash on hand 1.63 0.76
Balance wlth Banks:
- In surrent accounts/cash credlt accounts 831.06 82.76
832.58 83.62
# In lakhs
As at March 31, | As at March
19- Other B, '
Note 10- Other Bank balances 2025 3, 2024
Flxed deposits with banks with remalning maturity of less than 12 months { refer note 10.1) 18.50 -
19.50 -
Note 10.1 : Fixed deposlts of ¥ 18.50 lakhs (As at March 31, 2024 ¥ Nil } which have baen hald as margin monay with banks against bank
guarantess.
¥ In lakhs
As at March 31, | As at March
Mate 11- Other fl lal t t !
ate er financlal assats {current} 2025 3, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Securlty deposits 3712 48.18
Interest accrued but not due on:
= Fixed Deposlits 0.93 .
Subsldles and incentlves reaelvable (Refer note no. 49) 12,548.77 -
Other reoelvabla {refer Note No. 11.1) 2,836.07 645.04
15,422.89 693.22
Note : 11.1 Other recelvable pertalns to amount recelvatle from related partles (refer note 41}
¥ n lakhs
As at Margh 31, | As at March
2 :
Nete 12- Other current assets 2025 31, 2024
Unsecured, consldered good
Advancas for supply of goods and servlces 739.62 118,23
Advences to employeas 18.02 4.30
Balances with statutory and government autherities 968.84 4,689.15
Prepaid expanses 443.43 433.69
2,162,711 5,226.67




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26989AS2021PLC021391

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

%In lakhs
tote 13- Equlty share capital As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2025 2024

Authorized capltal 2,500.00 2,500.00

2,50,00,000 {2,50,00,600 as at March 31, 2024) equity Shares of € 10/ each fully paid
2,600.00 2,500.00

Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up shares

1,00,60,000 (1,00,50,000 as et March 31, 2024} equlty sheres of € 10/- sach fully pald 1,095.00 1,005.00
1,005.00 1,008.00

a) Terms/rights attached o equity shares

The Company has only cne class of equity shares having par value of 2 10/- per shars. Each holder of equity shares i entltied to one vote per shars. The Company declares and peys dividend
In [ndlan rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the sharsholders in the ensulng Annuel General Mesting exoept In case of interim dividend,

In the svent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will ba entitied to recalve ramalning assels of the Cempany, after distribution of all prefarential amounts. The
distribution will be In proportion fo the numtber of equity shares held by the sharehclders,

b} Reconclllation of the equity shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting period.

As at March 31,| As at March 31,
Equity Shares 2025 2024
Mo of ghares at the beginning of the year 1.00,50,000 50,000
|ssued during the year . - 1,00,00,000
Dutstanding at the end of the year 1,00,50,000 1,00,50,000
c] Shares held by the Halding Company
As at March 31,| As at March 31,
Name of the shareholder ) 2025 24
Star Cement Linited {refer note ()} §0,30,000 60,320,000
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capltal
stno |N #the sharehotd As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
. ame of the shareholders
No of shares | % of helding Neofshares | % of holding
1 |Star Cement Meghelaya Limited 40,20,000 40,00% 40,20,000 40.00%
2 |Star Cement Limlted {refar note (0} . 60,30,000 60.00% 60,30,000 60.00%
£} Shares held by the promoters at the and of the year
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Sr no |Pramotar name ) % Change
No of shares | % of holding No of shares % of holding | during the year
1 Star Cement Limited {refer note (£} 60,30,000 650.00% 60,230,000 50.00% -
1 [Star Cement Meghalaya Limlted 40,20,000 40.00% 40,20,000 40.00% -

{f) Includes & equity sheres held by other persons as nominee shareholders which are baneficlally owned by the Holding Company.

g} The above sharsholding represants both legal and bensficlal ownershlp based on the records of the Company, Including #s register of shareholders/members and other declaration recalived
from shareholders regarding banaficlal Intersst.
h} No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts!/ comm ltments for the sale of shares/disinvesiment as at the Balance Sheat date.

1] Ne securities converlible Into equityl preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year,

i} Mo calls are unpald by any director or efficer of ihe Company during the year




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999A52021PLC021391

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

¥ in lakhs

. As at March 31, | As at March 31,

Note 14~ Other equity 2025 2024

Securities premium

Opening balance 9,000.00 -

Additions during the year on issue of equity shares 9,000.00

Closing balance 9,000.00 9,000.00

Retained earnings

Qpening balance 560.41 -

Profit for the year” 17,238.28 560.41

Qther comprehensive income ;

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) (11.69) -

Closing balance 17,786.98 560.41
Total Other Equity 26,786.98 9,560.41

Nature and purpose of reserves
Securltles Premium

Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of par valus of securities and is available for utilisation as specified

under Secilion 52 of Companies Act, 2013

Retalned earnings

Retained esarnings represents accumutated profit of the Company as on reporting date. Such profits ara after adjustment of
payment of dividend, transfer to any reserves and adjustment for remeasurement gainfloss on defined benefit plan.




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999A52021PLC021391

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

¥ in lakhs
As at Margh 31, | As at March 31,
Note 15- Borrowings {non-current} 2025 2024
Term loans {secured)
Rupes term loans from banks [refer note 5.1 and note 16.2] 18,661.57 7,210.26
Loans from related party (unsecured)
From helding company and fellow subsidiary [refer note 15.3 and note 16.4] 6,822.00 21,676.59
26,663.57 25,8886.85
L.ess: Current maturities of long term borrowings (1,416.87) -
24,166.90 28,886.85

Note 15,1: Term loan of 210,161.57 lakhe (March 31, 2024 -% §,210.26 lakhs) carries interest @ repo rate + 1.50% p.a (March 31,2024 @ repo rate + 1.680% p.a). The Loan Is
repayable in 24 quarterly instalments starting from Margh 31, 2026 and secured by the pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets pertaining to tha grinding unt at
Sonapur Guwahat! other than excluslve charges created on certaln flxed assets with other term lenders. Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee provided by the

Holding Company. Refer note 41 for related party transaction.

Note 15.2: Tha term loan of #8,500.00 lakhs (as on March 31, 2024 — ¥1,000,00 lakhs) carries Interest at 1-month T-Bill + 1.30% p.a. (March 31, 2024 @ 1-month T-Blll + 1.30%
p.a.). The loan is repayable in 24 guarterly instalments beginning from Aprll 1, 2025. It is secured by the pari-passu charge, along with other term lenders, on all immovable and
movable fixed assets located st Sonapur, Guwahat! other than exclusive charges created on ceriain fixed assets with other term tenders. Addltionatly, the loan Is secured by a
corporate guarantes from the Holding Company. Refer te Note 41 for related party transactions.

Note 15.3: Term loan from holding company amounting to 2 Nil {31st March'2024-Rs. 434.58 lakhs) was payable within a term of 5 years. However the same was repaid in full In the
current year and was having interast rats of 8.79% (March 31, 2024 B.49%).

Note 15.4: Term loan fram & Fellow Subsidiary Company of $6,922 ‘akhs {March 31, 2024 - ¥21,242.00 lakhs) Is repayable within 5 ysars and the rate of Interest is 8,19% (March
31, 2024 8.00%).Refer note 41 for related party transaction.

Note 15.5: The Company has not made any default In Ioan repayment end Interast payments as at each reporting date.

- ¥inlakhs
142 As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Note 16- Lease [iabllities~ non current 2025 2024
MNon current leass liabilities (refer nota 393 B857.57 15.57
Z in lakhs
. As at Marsh 31, | As at March 31,
Note 17- Provisions (non current) 2025 2024
Provisions for employee benafits
106.37 58.92
-Leave sncashmeant 82.09 27.88
188.46 87.80
¥ in lakhs
T As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Note 18- Deferred tax liabilities (net) (Also refer Note No. 4) 2025 2024
Deferred tax liability (A)
On temporary differences related to property, plant and equipment & intangible assats - 402.20
Others - 0.07
- 402.27
Deferred tax assets (B)
Cn provision for employee benefits - 15.87
QOn carry forward unabsorbed depreciation - 270,43
- 286.40
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (A-B) - 115.87




Star Cement North East Limlted
CIN No ; U268999A52021PLC021391

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

¥ in lakhs
Note 19- Borrowlings As Etxa;;h 3, | As atgﬂoazztch 3,
Securad
Working capltal facilities from banks
- Buyer's credit [refer note 19.1 and note 19.2 ] 2,147.86 2,001.09
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,416.67 u
3,564.63 2,091.09

Note 19.1 : Buyer's credt for capax from bank amounting to Rs. 2,747.96 lakhs (March 31, 2024- ¥2,091.00 lakhs } is secured by way of excluslve charge on machinery
imporied under the facillty sancfloned by the bank.

Note 19.2 : Buyer's credit carry's interest & 8 months EURIBOR + 0.55% p.a {March 31, 2024- @ 3 months EURIBOR + 0.45% p.a } and it is repayable in 180 days.

2 in lakhs
— As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Note 20- Lease liabilities - current 2025 2024
Lease liabllities {refer note 39) 111.12 24,27
111.12 24.27
Zin lakhs
As af March 31, | As at March 31,
Note 21- Trade payables 2025 2024
Tetal outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises 1,774.82 680.15
Tetal outstanding dues of trade payable other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,886.04 4,718.11
9,760.86 5,399.26
Ageing of outstanding trade payables as on March 31, 2025. Zin lakhs
Sr Particulars Unbilled | NotDue | “essthand 1 -24 - 2-3 p 0 o3 years Total
No year years years
(1} [Undisputed- micro and small enterprises 1,762.92 11.90 - - - 1,774.82
(I |Undisputed- others 557.11 7,249.49 179.44 - - - 7,966.04
(il) | Disputed- micro and small enlerprises " - - - - - -
(v) | Dsputed- others " - - - " - -
Total 557.11 9,012.41 191,34 - - - 9,760.86
Ageing of outstanding trade payahles as on March 31, 2024, Z In lakhs
Sr Particulars Unbilled | NotDue | Lessthant 1-2 23 lyiore than 3 years Total
No year years years
(1 [Undisputed- micro and smal! enterprises - 680.15 - - - - 680.15
(i1 |Undisputed- others 448.89 4,241.85 28,37 - - - 4,719.11
(ili) | Disputed- micro and small enterprises " - " " N - u
(lv) | Disputed- others - - - - - - -
Total 448.89 4,922,00 28.37 - - - 5,390.26




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999A82021PLC021391

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Z in lakhs
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Note 22 Other financial liabilities (current) 2025 2024
Interest accrued but not due on borfowings 2113 17.36
Capital creditors (Including dues to MSME %133.65 lakhs PY ¥8.09 lakhs ) 1,465.14 5,866.99
Retention money 145.25 364.50
Dealer deposits 976.69 2.09
Discounts and incentives payable 4,478.15 637.72
Employses related liabilities 131.37 52.75
7.217.73 6,941.41
Z in lakhs
. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Note 23- Other current liabilities 2025 2024
Statutory liabilities 2,849.97 243.55
Contract liabllities - advance from customers 39.78 56.99
2,889.75 300.54

Note 23.1 : Revenue of £56.99 lakhs is recognised during current financial year that was included in contract liabilities - advance from

customers outstanding at the beginning of the year.

Zin lakhs
Note 24~ Provisions As at ;V{I;rsch 31, | Asat zngz:fh 3,
Provisions for employee benefits
-Grafuity (refer note 35) 219 3.56
-Leave encashment 2.56 1.73
475 5.29
¥ in lakhs
I As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Note 25- Current tax liabilities (net) 2025 2024
Provision of taxation (net) 347.05 -

347.05




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No ; U26998AS2021PLC021391

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Zin lakhs

Note 26- Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Sale of goods:

-Cement

Other operating income
-Sale of Scrap

~Incentives and subsidies

1,18,486.54 5,441.21

1,18,486.54 5,441.21
81.52 -
12,448.77 -

1,31,016.83 5441, 21

Note 26.1 : Primary business of the company is manufacturing and sale of Cement. The product shelf life being short, all sales are made at a
point in time and the revenue is recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is typically upon dispatch / delivery.

Note 26.2 : The Company has a credit evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade receivables are established, the Company
does not give a significant credit period resulting in no significant financing component. The normal Credit period is 30 days.

Note 26.3 : The Company operates within the geographical areas of India,

Note 26.4 : Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit and loss :

g in lakhs

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per Contract Price 1,34,454.30 6,112.82
Discount and Incentives (15,967.76) {671.61)
1,18,486.54 5,441.21

Revenue as per statement of profit and loss

Note 26.5: The management determines that the. segment information reported in note 44 is sufficient to meet the disclosure objective with

respect to disaggregation of revenue under Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract with customers.

Z in lakhs

Note 27- Other income

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest income (using the effective interest rate method)
-On bank deposits
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net} {refer note 27.1)

Miscellaneous incomse

1.04
442,97
13.77

457.78

27.1 Includes ¥ 453.57 lakhs related to gain on sale of land to a fellow subsidiary (March 31, 2024 Nil) {refer note 41)

% in lakhs

Note 28- Cost of materials consumed

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Raw Materials:
Opening stock
Add: Purchases during the year

Less : Closing stock

504.49 -
63,532.97 3,680.70
64,037.46 3,680.70

1,599.96 504.49
62,437.50 3,176.21




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC021391

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Zin lakhs

Note 28- Changes in inventories of finished goods

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Finished goods

Opening stock 452.41 -
Closing stock 885.25 452.41
(432.84) (452.41)
(Increase)/decrease (432.84) {452.41)
Zin lakhs

Note 30- Employee benefif expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries & wages
Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Employees welfare expenses

3,486.96 71.23
§2.82 3.78
34.40 16.25

3,604.18 91.26

Note 30.1 : Employee cost is inclusive of remuneration paid to directors and key management personnels (refer note

41).

Note 30.2 : Salaries & wages expenses of ¥473.23 lakhs (March 31, 2024- 545,51 Lakh) related to employees
deployed in projects, has been transferred to capital work-in-prog‘ress during the year. {refer note 2.2(b}}.

Z in lakhs

Note 31~ Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest expense:

- On borrowings (measured at amortised cost) 2,477.59 130.59
- On lease liabilities 66.11 0.59
- Others (including interest on dealer's deposits) 18.57 -
Other borrowing costs 445.30 1.54
3,007.57 132.72

Note 31.1 : Interest of ¥58 lakhs (March 31, 2024~ ¥942 .53 lakhs ) is capitalised during the year as pre- operative

expenses in capital work in progress {refer note 2.2(b)}.

Note 31.2 : Refer note 15.1 to 15.4 for applicable interest rate on borrowings,
Note 31.3 : Other borrowing costs includes € 375 lakhs related to commission on financial gurantee received from

holding company. {refer note 41).

Noie 31.4: Interest on borrowing include applicable loss on foreign currency {ransaction

March 31, 2024- Nit)

ftranslation of ¥58.87 lakhs (

€ in lakhs

Note 32- Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Depreciatioh on property, plant and equipments 7.772.08 369.32

Depreciation on right-of-use- assets 87.16 176

Amortisation of intangible assets 0.83 0.07] -
7,860.07 371.15\|




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC021391

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Tin lakhs

Note 33- Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Consumption of stores & spares 73719 10.76
Packing materials 3,000.44 147.28
Repairs & maintenance
~ Building 29.78 -
- Plant & machinery 314.95 -
- Others 48.96 293
Heavy vehicle / equipment running expenses 348.92 10.20
Rent 68.48 16.23
Travelling and conveyance 183,93 3142
Insurance 73.49 8.98
Rates & taxes 3.14 0.37
Charity & donation 0.02 -
Professional & consultancy fees 97.70 0.77
Brokerage & commission 926.67 4417
Sales promotion expenses 2,433.70 -
Advertisement & publicity 711.75 -
CSR expenses 13.80 -
Miscellaneous expenses (refer note 33.1 & 33.2) 1,203.86 29.62
Total 10,296.78 302.43
¥ in lakhs

Note 23.1 : Payment to auditors

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

i) Statutory Audit Fees

ii) In other capacity:
Certification Fees and other services
Tax Audit fees

8.00 5.00
10.00 -

2.50 ) -
20.50 5.00

33.2: (i) Does not include any item of expenditure with a value of more than 1% of Revenue from operations.
{ii) Includes expenses towards loading & unleading, information technology, security, vehicle hire, and others.




Star Cement North East Limited
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Notes to the Financial Stataments for the yoar ended March 31, 2025

Note: 34 -~ Tax expenses

Zin lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(a} Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 3,791.33 -
Total current tax expense 3,791.33 -
(b) Defarred tax
Deferred tax {234.32) 115.87
Total deferred income tax expensef{income) (234.32) 115.87
{c ) Tax in respect of earfier years - (1.13)
Tax eXpenses 3,557.01 114.74
# in lakhs

34.1 Reconcliiation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by corporate tax rate:

For the year ended

Forthe year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Profit bafore tax 20,795.27 675.15
Tax at the corporate fax rate of 17.16% 3,568.47 115.86
Relaied to earlier year - (1.13)
ltems not deductible under Income Tax Act, 1861 4.83 -

Others (16.29) 0.01
Tax expenses 3,557.01 114.74

Note 34.2 1 The corporate tax rate used for the year 2024-26 for above reconciliation is 17.16% { 15%+ surcharge @ {0% + education cess @4% } payable on taxable profits

under seciion 115 BAB of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Note 34.3 : The Company has exercised the option under section 115BAB of tha Incomes Tax Act, 1861 as Infroduced by tha Taxation Laws (Amendment; Ordinance, 2019 and
therefore the Company has recogn'zed its deferrad tax assets and labllities for the year ended March 31, 2025 based on the tax rate prescribed under the said section.

Note 34.4 : During the year, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any Income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 { such as search or survey or
any other relavant provision of tha Income tax Act, 1961 }. Accordingly, there are no transactions which are not recorded In the books of accounts.

Note: 34A - Earnings per share

¥ in lakhs uniess otherwise stated

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars
(i) Profit attributable to equity holders of the company used in calculating basic and diluted sarnings per share 17,238.26 £560.41
(1) Welghted average number of equity shares used as the denominator In calculating baslc earnings per sharg (In no.) 1,00,50,000 1,00,50,000
(til) Welghted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share (In no.) 1,00,50,000 1,00,50,000
(iv) Earning per share (In¥T )
Face value of equity shares 10.00 10.00
Basic 171.62 5.58
Dilluted 171.52 5.58




Star Cement North East Limited
CiIN No : U26999A52021.Pi.C021391

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note : 35 - Employees benefit obligations

(a) Post-employment obligations
i} Gratuity

The Company has a dsfined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled {o Gratuity on terms not less than the
provisions of The Paymeant of Gratu'ty Act, 1972, The scheme s not funded.

The amounts recognised in the Balance shaet and the movements in the net defined bensfit obligation over the vear are as follows:

¥ in lakhs

Particulars Presel::t value
of obligation

As at April 1, 2023 R
Current service cost 7.24
Past service cost 56.24
Interes{ expense -
Total amount recognised In profit or loss 63.48
Remeasurements:
Actuartal (gain)ioss from change in financial assumptions -
Actuarial {gain)/loss from unexpected experience -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive Income -
Beneflt paid N
As at March 31, 2024 63.48

Partlculars

Present value

of obligation

As at April 1, 2024 63.48
Current service cost 26.47
Past service cost “
Intarast expense 4,51
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 30.98
Remeagurements:
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumpticns 5.10
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience 9.01
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 14.11
Benefit paid -
As at March 31, 2025 108.56
Liability recognised in the Balance Shest 2 in lakhs

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of Defined benefit obligation 108.56 63.48
Liabllity recognlsed In the Balance Shest 108.56 63,48
Current liabil'ty 219 3.56
Non-Current liability 106.37 §9.92
(i) Significant estimates: actuarlal assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.84% 7.10%

Salary growth rate 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 1%-8% 1%-8%

Mortality rate

IALM (2012-14) Table

IALM (201214} Table

{iii} Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation fo changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Z in lakhs

Increase/{Decrease) on defined benefit obligation

Parficulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

1% rate Increase 1% rate decrease 1% rate increase 1% rate decrease
Discount rate (10.64) 12.48 {5.53) 8.71
Salary growth rate 11.68 (10.20} 6.23 {5.28)
Withdrawal rate {G.65) 0.61 0.31 {0.113}

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while helding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes
in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined bensfit obligation to significant actuartal assumptions the sama method

(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit cregd
calculating the defined benefit liabllity racognised In the balance sheet.

method at the end of the re

porting perled} has been applied as when
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{iv) Risk exposure
© Through its defined benaflt plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailad balow:

Lifs expectancy:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability Is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of
the employment. An Increase in the life expsctancy of the plan participanis wiil increase the plan llability.

Salary growth risk
The presant value of the defined benefit plan llabllity is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An Increase in the ife expectancy of the plan

participants will increasa the plan Yability,

(v} Defined benefit liability
Expected coniributions to post-employment benefits ebligation for the year ending March 31, 2026 are 35.33 lakhs { March 31, 2025 - ¥11.31 lakhs )
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.84 years (March 31, 2024: 6.55 years ). The expscted maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is

as follows:

¥ in lakhs
Particulars Less than Betweaen Over 5
a year 1- B years years
As at March 31, 2025 219 22.26 30.30
As at March 31, 2024 3.56 4.45 13.31

b) Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution plan, with respect to provident fund ,pension fund and ESIC, amounting to £82.82 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 3.34 lakhs) has been recognised as
expenses in the statement of Profit and loss.

Note : 36 - Capltal management

Risk management

The primary objective of capital management is to ensure the maintenance of healthy capital ratio In order to support Its business and maximise sharehelder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes changes in view of changing economic conditions. No changes were made in the objectlves, palicles or
process during the year ended March 31, 2025 as compared to previcus year. There have been no breaches of financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and
borrowings for the reported year. Tha Company monitors capital strusture on the basis of debt to equity ratic. For the purpose of Company's capltal managemant,
squity includes paid up equity share capital and other equity, and debt comprises long and short term borrowings including current maturities of these borrowings. The
following table summarizes long term dabt and equity of the Company.

¥ in lakhs

Particulars As at As at

j March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
l.ong term borrewings ) 24,166.90 28,886.85
Short-term borrowings 3,564.83 2,091.09
f.ess: Cash and cash equivalent 832.58 83.52
Less: Bank balances Other than Cash and Cash equivalent 19.50 -
Net debt 26,679.45 30,894.42
Total aquity 27,791.98 10,565.41
Capftal and net dabt 54,671.43 41,459.83
Gearing ratio 0.49 0.75

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company review the fuind management at regular intervals and take necessary actions to maintaln the requisite

capital structure.
No changes were made In the ohjectives, policies cor processes for managing cap'tal during the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
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Notes to the Financlaf Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note : 37 - Financlal Instruments by category Z In lakhs
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Amortised cost (;an:::{:?\? Amortised cost (;an:roﬂ:?
Financial assets :
(i} Trade receivables 7,787.70 7,787.70 4,434.03 4,434.03
(i) Cash and cash equivalent 832.58 832.58 83.52 83.52
(iii) Other Bank Balances 19.50 19.50 - -
(iv) Other financial assets 15,082.85 15,882.85 1,223.01 1,223.01
24,632.63 24,632.63 5,740.56 5,740.56
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing 27,731.53 27,731.53 30,977.94 30,977.94
(i} Lease labilities _ 768.69 768.69 39.84 38.84
(il Trade payable 9,760.86 9,760.86 5,390.26 5,300.26
(iv) Other financial llabtities 7,217.73 7,217.73 6,941.41 6,941.41
45,478.81 45,478.81 43,358.45 43,358.45

(i} Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining andfor disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

Level 1: This leve! includes those financial instruments which are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusied) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair vatue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on enfity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not hased on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
{I1) Valuation techniques used to determine falr value

Thea fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received if the company, sold to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and payables, short-lerm loans, current financial liabiltties and
assets and borrowings approximate their camrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The management considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at nominal cost/amoriised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair
values. In respect of non current borrowing, fair value is determined by using discount rates that reflect the present borrowing rate of the company .

{iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortlsed cost % in lakhs
As at March 31, 2025 As af March 31, 2024

Carrying amount | Falr value - | Carrying amount [ Fair value

Particulars

Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 7,797.70 7,797.70 4,434.03 4,434.03
(if) Cash and cash equivalent 832,58 832.58 83.52 83.52
(iii) Other Bank Batances 19.50 19.50 - -
(v} Other financial assets 15,982,856 15,982.85 1,223.01 1,223.01
Total financial assets 24,632.63 24,632.63 5,740.56 5,740.56
Financial liabilities

(1) Borrowing 27,731.53 27,731.53 30,977.84 30,977.94
(i) Lease Liabilities 768.09 768.69 39.84 39.84
(iiiy Trade payable 9,760.86 9,760.88 5,399.26 5,399.26
{iv) Other financial tiabilities 7,217.73 7,217.73 6,941.41 6,941.41
Total financial liabilities 45,478.81 45,478.81 43,358.45 43,358.45

(iv) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active markat is determined using valuatton techniques. The Company uses its judgement to
select a varlety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. As on reporting
date, there are no financial assets/ liabilities which are required to be valued using such valuation tehnigues.
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Note : 38 - Financlal risk management

The Company's activities are exposed to a var'ties of financial risks viz credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk}.This note explains the sources of risk which the enlily Is exposaed to and how the entity manages risk:

(A) Croedit risk

Credit sk is the risk that counterparty will not mest its obligations under a financial instrument or custemer gontract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company 's exposed to credit risk from its operating activities,primarily related to trade receivables and from its flnancing activities related to deposits
placed with banks and financial institution and other financlal instruments.

i} Trade receivables

Customer cradit risk is managed by the Company as per established policies, precedurss and defined control relating to customer credit risk management.
Trade recelvables are non-inferest bearing and are generally carrying 30 days credit terms. No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Company's net sales. Therafore, the Company dees not expeact any matarial risk on account of nen-performance by any of its counterparties.

For expected credit loss as at each reporting date, the Company assesses the ris profile of trade receivables and categorises risk picfile viz. trade
receivables for which credit risk has not been significantly increased from initial recognition, trade receivables for which credit risk has increased
significantly but are not credit impaired and for trade receivables for which credit risk has increased significantly and are credit impaired.

The Company has adopted slmplfied approach medel to compute credit loss allowance based on a provislon matrix. The provision matrix is prepared
based on historically cbserved default rates over the expected lifa of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting
date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-focking estimates are updated. Accordingly, loss allowances on trade receivables
are measured using provision matrix at an amount equal fo [ife ime expected losses l.e. expected cash shortfall. There is no loss allowances on trade
recievables as on March 31, 2025 and as on March 31, 2024,

ii) Financial instruments and deposlts

Cradit risk pertaining to balances with banks is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with it's policy. Surplus funds are parked
only within approved investment categeries with well defined limlts. Investment category is periodically reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors.
Credit risk arising from shert term liquid funds, cther bank balances and cther cash equivalents is limited and ne collaterals are held against these because
the counierpartles are banks with high credit ratings assigned by the credit rating agencles. Nene of the financial instruments of the Company result in
material concentration of cradit risks. ’

Other financial asssts mainly include receivable from fellow subsidy company against land sale and security deposits given primarly to govt. agencles.
Thera are no indications that defaults in payment obligations would oceur in respect of these financial assets.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the compenents of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carrying
amounts as fllustrated in Note 37.

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations assoclated with financial llabllities that are settlad by delivering cash or
another financial agsat.

Prudent liquidity risk managament implies maintaining sufficlent cash and marketable securitles and the avaltability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the underlying business, the Company maintains sufficient cash and liquid
Invastments avaliable to meet its obligation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity posltion (comprising the undrawn berrowing facilities below) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The management also considers the cash flows projection and level of liquld assets necessary to meet
these on a regular basis.

(i} Financing arrangements

The Company had aceess to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period: ¥ in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fund Based Facilities 4,600.00 -
Non fund based Facilities 2,698.00 1,941.00
7,188.00 1,941.00

Maturities of financial llabilitles
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on thelr coniractuat maturities for all financial liabllities.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Z In lakhs
Con:;:g#?;?:;;:tms of financial liabilities - Less than 1 year Between 1 to 5 years | Mora than 5 years Total
Boirrowing 3,664.63 22,306.63 1,860.27 27,731,563
Trade payables 9,760.86 - - 9,760.86
l.ease Liabilities 135.25 289.90 1,635.64 2,060,789
Other financial liabllities # 7,217.73 - - 7.217.73
Total financial liabilities 20,678.47 22,598.53 3,495.91 46,770.91

¥ in lakhs
Contra(’:‘:l;?:;rl‘lrl;tll’u'zl;i;: of financal liabilities - Less than 1 year Between 1 to Syears | More than 5 years Total
Borrowing 2,091.09 28,686.85 - 30,977.94
Trade payables 5,399.26 - - 5,369.26
Leass Lisbitities 16.29 28,51 - 44.80
Other financial liabilitiss# 6,941.41 - - 5,941,41
Total financial liabilities 14,448.05 28,915,368 - 43,363.41

# Other financial liabilities includes deposits received from customers amounting to € 976.69 lakhs {March 31,2024 - £2.09 |akhs). These deposits do not
have a contractual re-payment term but are repayable on demand. Since, the Company does not hava an unconditional right to defer the payment beyond
12 months from reporiing date, these deposits have been classmed under cugrent f|nanc|al liabilities. For including these amounts in the above mentioned
iy hgreon, will be repay: ble;a£ nd of the next repoiting perlod. The
the date on whjsh fHesh/d &p

its are settled to the customers.
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(C) Market risk

(i) Forelgn currency risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Tha Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's liabllity towards trade or other payables
denominated in foreign currency. In view of low proportion of import, as compared te the overall operations, the exposure of the Company to foreign
exchange risk is insfgnificant and thus Company does not enter into any derivative financial confracts. Foreign currency denominated balances lying in the
books of accounts as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Fareign currency risk exposure

The company's exposure to foreign currency (EURC & USD) risk at the end of the reperting period expressed in INR are as follows:- # in lakhs
As at As at
Currency Nature March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
EURO Buyer's Credit 2,147.96 2,081.09
EURQ Letter of Credit 4,112.14 -
usD Letter of Credit - 967.50
Met exposure to foreign currency risk 6,260.10 3,058.59
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower change as a result of changes in foreign exchange fluctuation as below:
T in lakhs
Impact on profit before tax
, For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2025 2024
Foreign exchange fluctuation — strengthening of INR by 5% 313.00 152.83
Foreign exchange fluctuation — weakening of INR by 5% {313.00) {152.93)

(11} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's expasure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with fioating interest rates.

{a} Interest rate risk exposure

On Flnanclal Liabilities:
The exposure of the Company’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

Z in lakhs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31,2024
Varigble rate borrowings 27,731.53 30,977.94
Total borrowings 27,731.53 30,977.94
(b) Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from berrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:
 in lakhs
Impact on profit before tax
Particul For the year For the year
artjculars ended March 31, | ended Margh 31,
2025 2024
Interest expense rates —increase by 50 basis points® (138.66) (154.89)
Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 bas’s points* 138.66 154.82
* Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the borrowing at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entire pericd
(i1i) Price risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or by factors
affecting alt similar financial instruments traded In the market.
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Note : 39 - Lease

a) The Company has entered into agreements for taking of Land and certain warehouses on lease and licence basis. The lease term is for a period ranging

from 1to 30 years, on fixed rental basis with escalation clauses In the lease agreements.

b) The Company also has certain leases of buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 'short-term lease’ racognition

exemptions for these leases,

¢} Lease Tiabilities are recognised al wefghted average incremental borrowing rate ranging from 8.07% - 8.84% p.a (March 31, 2024; 8.48%). Set out below

are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities included under financial liabilities and its movement during the year.

# In lakhs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Opening balance 39.84 -
Additions 793.11 41.97
Deletions - -
Add: Interest recognised during the year 66.11 0.59
Less: Payments made {130.37) (2.72)
Closing balance 768.69 39.84
Non-current lease liability 657.57 15.57
Current lease liability 111.12 24.27
d) Amount recognized in Profit or Loss Z In lakhs
: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest expense on lease liabllities 66.11 0.59
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 87.16 1,76

e} Future payment of lease liabilltles on an undiscounted basis

As per the requirement of Ind AS-107, maturity analysis of lease liabilittes have been shown under maturity analysis for financial liabilities under Liquidity
risk {refer Note 38(B). The below table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilitties on undiscounted basis:

¥ in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 ; March 31, 2024
Less than one year 135.25 16.29
One to two years 118.44 16.26
Twe to five years 171.46 1222
More than five years 1,635.64 -
Total undiscounted Lease Liabilities 2,060.79 44.80

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are suificient to meet the obligation related to

lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Note : 40 - Contingent llablllity and Capital commitments

i) Contingent liabllity

The management has dong complete assessment for contingent liability at the balance sheet date and based on their assessment there s no contingent

liability as on reporting date.

i) Capital Commitments ¥ in lakhs
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,

Sl. No Particulars 2025 2024

1 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 7.610.41 1.217.64

advances)
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Nots : 41 - Related party disclosures

. |A) List of related partfes :

|. Names of the related party

Nature of relationship

Star Gement Limited {SCL)

Star Cement Meghalaya Limitad {SCML})

Star Century Global Cement Private Limited {SCGCPL)
Star Smart Buliding Salutions Limited (SSBSL)
(Formerly Star Cement {India) Limited

Rl Pnar Cement Private Limited (RIPNAR})

Kopill Cement (1) Privata Limited (KOPILI)

Holding Company
Fellow- Subsidiary Company
Fellow- Subsldiary Company

Fellow- Subsidiary Company

Faliow- Subsidiery Company {w.e.f June 05, 2024)
Fellow- Subsidlary Company (w.e.f September 17, 2024)

Qthers related partles- With whom transactions have taken place during the current andfor previous year or has outstanding balance

1. Entities controlladjaintly controlted or slgnlficantly Influenced by Key Managerial Personnel or clese family member of Key Managerlal Personnel er by Key Managarial Parsonnel of Holding company:

Century LED Limlted (GLL)
Shyam Metallcs And Energy Limited (SMEL)
Shyam Sel & Power Limlted (SSPL}

Entitles controlledfjointly controlled or significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel or close family membar of Key Managarial Personne! or by Key

Manageriel Persennel of Holding company

Il. Kay Managemant Persgnnel

Mr. Kashav Bhajanka
Mrs, Nilta Bansal

Mr. Tushar Bhejanka
Mr. Manof Agarwal
Mrs. Joyanti Ofha

Mr. Debabrata Thekurta

Director
Diractor

Managing Director (w.e.F March 01, 2024} and Director {Hil February 28, 2024)
Chief Flnanclal Officer (w.e.f March 01, 2024)

Company Sacretary (till June 30, 2024}

Company Secretary {w.e.f Aug 08, 2024}

B) Details of transactions between the Company and related partfes ;

? in lakhs

Nature of Transactions (*)

Holding

Fallew Subsldlary

Entitles controlledjointly
controlled or significanély
Influenced by key managarlal
personnei or closs famlly
menker of key manaperial
personnel or by Key Managerlal
Personnel of HoldIng company

Key management personnals

For the yaar
ended March 31,
2025

For the year
ended March 31,
2024

For the year
ended March 31,
2025

ended March 21,

For the year

2024

Fortha year For the year
anded March 31, | ended March
2026 31, 2024

Forthe year
anded March 31,
2025

For tha year ended
March 31, 2024

1., Purchase transactions
SCML

SCL

GLL

SMEL

SSPL

2. Bales transactions
588sL

2. Purchase of land
SCL

S8BSL

3. Sale of land
SSBSL

4. Service racelved
5CL

SCML

5. Loan repaid

SCL

SCML

6. Loan taken

SCL

SCML

7. Commisslon on financial guarantee recelved
SCL

8. Share application money receivad
5L

SCML

9, Interest expensos
5CL

SCML

10. Remuneration
irs, Joyantl Ojha

Mr. Tushar Bhajanka

9,813.63 1,186.34

- 2,443.35

3,356.50 40.69

434.63 14,508.69

- 12,861.00

375.00 375.00

- 4,800.00

2.05 444,23

29,243.37

6B.57

2,028.33
453,57
8,033.07

19,835.00

5,815.00

1.118.77

1,844.38

6456.04
300.33

295.00

21,537.00

3,200.00

513.80

- 3304
- 51.97
- 1,925.79

0.60
160.00

0.20
13.33

C) Balance cutstanding as at March 31, 2025 :

*The above mentloned transaction values excludes goods & services tax and other taxes, IF any wharever appliceble. Previous year figures have been regrouped accordingly.

Nature of Balances

Holdirg Company

Fellow Subsldlary

Entlties controlladifointly
controlled orsignificantly
influenced by ksy managerlal
personnel or close famlly
member of key managerlal
personnal or by Key Managerlal
Perscennel of Holding company

Key Managemernit Persennel and thelr
closa famlly members

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,

2024

As at March 3%, | Asat March
2025 31, 2024

As at March 31,

2025 As at March 31, 2024

1. Trade and other payable
SCL

SCML

5585L

GLL

2.Trade and other receivables
SCL

SSBSL

3. Loans taken

8CL

SCML

4. Interast payahle

SCML

5. Financlat guarantees received
scL

8 Remuneratlon payzhle

Mrs. Joyantl Olha

Mr. Tushar Bhajanka

- 3,054.85

2,837.40 -

- 434.60

37.500.00, 37.,500.00

4,699.05
647.80

§,922.00

6.90

2,747.96

687.21

21,242.00

- 0.62

EMET
7
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0.20
13.33
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D) Key managemant personnel compansation T in lakhs
For the year
ended March 31, | For the year endad
Particulars 2025 March 31, 2024
Short-term emplovee benefits 160.60 13.53
Post-amployment benefits - -
Long-term employes benefits - -
Total compensation 160.60 13.53

E) Terms and Condlttons of transactions with re'ated partles:
() The sales and purchases transaction with related parties (including transactions related to property, plant and equipment) are made In the normal course of business and on terms equivalant to those that pravall In arm’s
length transactions. Outstanding belances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free end settiement occurs In cash.

{li} The Company has taken Intsr corporate oan from Its holding company & Fallow subsidiery company, the rale of Interast of which is 8,79% and 8,19% respectlvely {March 31, 2024 8.49% and 8% respeciively.)

{1} Far the veer ended March 31, 2025, the Compeny hes nct recorded any impalrment of recelvabies releting to amounts owed by related parlies. This assessment Is undertaken each financlal yaar through examining the
financlal pesition of tha retated party and the markat In which the related party aparates.

{F) Post-smployment bansfits and other long-term benefits reiated to KiPs Is belng disclosed based on actual payment made on retirement fresignation of services, but does not includes provision made on actuarlal basls as
the same is availabla for ail employass together.

Nots: 42 - Disclosure of Corporate Soclal Respensibllity sxpsndlture

T in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2029
(@) Gross amount requlred to ke spent by the company during the year 11.20 -
{b] Carry farward armount from previcus year (shartfall)f Surplus - -
{c) Amount spent during the yearon :
(1) Constructlon/acqulsition of any asset N -
{1} On purpose other than above 13.80 -
{d} (Excess spent ) / Short fall during the yesr {2.60) -
{e) Payment made i3.80 -
(f} Yet to be paid - -
(g} The nature of CSR activities undariakan by the Company Making avallable Making evailable
. Promoting Promoting
Healthcare, Healtheare,
Education, Sports Education, Sperts
upliftment, upliftment,
Animal Welfare, Animal Welfara,
Rurzl devel Rural davefopment
program, Flood/ | program, Flood/ Disaster
Disaster Rellef, Rellef, Livelihood & skill
Livellhood & skill bultding and
building and Environment
Envlrohment Sustalnablfity
Sustalnahllity

Note : 43 « Compliance undar section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmant Act, 2066
Based on the Information/documents available with the Company, Information &s per the requirement of Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as under:

¥in lakhs
As al March 31,

Particulars 2028 As at March 31, 2024
{) Principal amount remalning unpaid to any suppllar at the end of the accounting year (Including ratantion money egainst performance) 1,508.47 688.24
{11} Interest due on abeve 2.04 -
Total of {1} & () 1,910.51 §68.24
{1} Amount of Interest paid by the Company to the suppllers In terms of Section 16 of the Act. - -
(il Amount paid to the suppllers beyond the respective appoirted dete. 492.56 -
(i) Amount cf interest dua and payabie for tha perlod of delay In payments (which have bsen paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the Interest
specified under the Act. - -
(iv) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of acsounting year. 243 -
{¥) Amount of further Interest remaining due and payable sven In tha succeading years, until such date when the interest duss as abova are actualy paid to the small enterprise, for
tha purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of this Act. N .

Abovs Informaticn has beer determinad to the extent such partias have besn identifiad on the basis Infimation recalved from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Devalopment
Act, 2006

Note : 44 - Segment Information

(1} Cement Is the only identified eperaling segment of the Company. There Is no separate reportable segment as required by Ind AS 108 'Operaling Segmants', There [s no such custemers which cantribute 10 per cent or mera
of the Company's total revenua durlng the current and pravious yaar,

(1) Geographical Infarmation

The entire revenus of the Cempany has been generated by way of domastic sales . - ¥ in lakhs
pany g | O way Ag at March 31,

Geographlcal Locatien 2025 As at March 31, 2024

indla ( Country of Domlcile) 4,31,016.83 5441.21

Quiside Indie - -

Total 1,31,016.93 S441.21

Al the non-currant assets (Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, Intangible assets, right of use assets and other non-current assets) of the Comypany are within [ndia.
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Note: 45 - Financial ratlos

¥ in lakhs

Sl

No Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 2024-25 | FY2023-24 | % Varlance | Explanatlon for variances exceedlng 25% !
. . Incraasa In current assets by 148% mainly due to
1 |Current ratle (In imss} Current assels Current llabillties 1.26 0.82 53.18%|incraasa in incentives & subsidies.
e ! . Total debt (long term + Equity (shara capltal + ) . Increase due to Retained Earning (profit) by
2 |Debt- equity ratio (In times)# shar term barrowing) other aaulty) 1.00 293 65.97%| 297%,
3 | Debt sarvice coveraga ralio (in tmes) Earnings available for debt | popy oo vica () 135 0.03 | 3827.529| IN°r2388 dua to Retained Eaming (profit) by
seivice 207%.
. Average shareholdsrs Increase due to Retained Earning (profit} by
0, 0, o 0,
4 |Return on equity ratlo (%) Net profit equlty 8) £9.88% 8.92% 907.85% 207%,
5 |Inventory turnover ratic (In times) Sales Inventory (a) 42,48 318 1235.87% L’:;rfase In sales and higher kwventory during the
8 |Trade rscelvables turnover ratic {Intimes) |Sales Trade recelvable () 18.37 1.23 1475.09% :fnet;r;aase In sales and highar debtors during the
. . Increasa In purchases by 262% and higher
7 |Trade Payables Turnover Rallo (in times) | Purchase Trade payable (o) 838 0.85 286.07% payables during the year.
Working capital=
8 |Net capital turnover ratio {In times) Sales current assets- 19.08 (2.08)| ~1016.62%|increase in sales during the year,
currant lfahilities
@ | Net profit Ratlo (%} Nst Profit Sales 14.55% 10.30% 41.25%|Increase In salas during the yaar,
40 [Return on capital smeloyad (%) tEairr(!]lsngnlz)efore Interast & Capltal emplayed (d) 42.87% 1.94% 2100.85% | Inorease in profit by £97% during the year.
11 [Return on Investmeant (%} Gain/{loss) on investmant Average Investment NA NA

} Average Inventory -; {opening Inventory+glosing Inventory)/2
} Average trade receivable = (opening trade receivable+closing trade recelvable)/2
) Average trade payable -; (opening trade payeble+closing trade payable)/z

) Average shareholders equity-: (epening equity (incl. cther equity) +closing equity (incl. other equity )2
} Average Investment - fopaning invastmant + closing Investment)2
g) Debt service -! Interast payments -+ lease payments + princlpal repayments

{a

{b

{c

(d} Capital smployad -: (Equity (Incl. ather equity-Intanglble assats) + current korrowing + non-currant borrowing
G

(f

(

Overall varianca reasoning

During the current financlal year, the Company was In full operation whersin during the last year perlod of operation was limited to twenty (20) days.

Note: 48 - Other Statutory Information

) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,
i} The Company has not advanced or ioanad or investsd funds to any other person er entity, Including foreign entities (Intermediarles) with the understanding that the Infermadiary shalk
{a) directly or indrectly lend or Invest In other persans or entities identified in any manner whalsoaver by or on behalf of the Gompany {Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
{b) provide any guarantee, securlty or the fike to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficlarles.

Ly
shall

The Gompany hae not recelvad any fund from any person or entily, including forsign entities (

Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded in wrlting ar otherwisa} {hat the Company

{a} directly or indirgotly lend or invest in other persons or entities Identifled In any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Funding Parly (Ultimate Beneficlaries); or
{b} provide any guarantes, security or the ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Iv) There is no transactions or balances with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companles Act,2013:
v} The company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or gther lender.

Vi) Thare are no charges for which charge satisfaction/creation forms are pending to be filad with Registrar of Companles,




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC0O21391
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 47 - Quarterly Statements for working capital facilities from Banks
The Company has filed quarterly statements with the banks in compliance of the sanctioned working capital facilities and the differences
with the hooks of accounts are as stated below:

% in lakhs
Amount Amount
disclosed per disclosed as
Name of the Bank Quarter ended {Particulars books o? per quarterly| Differences Reason for variance
return/state
account
ments
Trade Receivable 7,767.70 7,901.04 {103.34)
March'25 Inventory 3,268.85 4,211.45 (342.60)(_, .
! ’ The differences are because
.86 . .
Trade Payable 9,760 5,538.55 4,222.31 the statements filed with
the fenders are based on
Trade Receivable 6,430.79 6,586.77 {155.98) financial statebments
December'24  |Inventary 3,336.13 3,996.92 (660.79) prepared on a provisional
Trade Payable 4,716.99 3,915.87 801.12 basks and also due to audit/
HDFC Bank Limited accounting adjustment
Trade Receivable 5052.63|  519435|  (14172) Ceit:;e;”cgam]e P
September24 [Inventory 1,877.96 2,051.44 {173.48) subsequently along with
Trade Payable 4,045.77 2,766.16 1,279.61 q Y .g
certain debtors, inter-
[
Trade Receivable - - company(grolup) balances
, were not considerad by the
June'24 Inventory - - Banks
Trade Payable - - )

Note : 47.1 Company has started utilizing the working capital fimits w.e.f September 20, 2024. Thus company has staried submitting the
quarterly statements with Banks from the quarter ended September 2024,




Star Cement North East Limited
CIN No : U26999AS2021PLC021391

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 48

The company had commenced cement production in its grinding unit located at Guwahati with an installed capacity of 2.0 Million tons
on March 12, 2024. In view of the same previous year figures are not comparable with current year.

Note: 49

The company's grinding unit located at Guwahati is eligible for customized incentives by way of State Goods & Service Tax
reimbursement to the tune of 200% of fixed capital investment over a period of 20 years and other benefits vide MOU entered with
Government of Assam on May 9, 2023 under Industrial & Investment Policy of Assam, 2019 .The company has received eligibility
certificate and is in the process of applying certificate of entitlement and post receipt of the same, the company shall initiate the process
of filling monthly incentive claims with Government of Assam.

Note: 50

The Company has been using various accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions except Audit trail feature is not
enabled at database level.

Note: 51

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 20, 2025 for issue to the
shareholders of the Company for the adoption.

Asrodr ol Tona i s ey o i e For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
P P Star Cement North East Limited

v
Manoj Agarwal Tushar Bhajanka
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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